UNITED
NATIONS

: : Distr.
Economic and Social CENERAL
Council

E/ ON 4/ 1997/ SR 62
18 June 1997

Oiginal: ENGISH

COWMM SSI ON ON HUMAN RI GHTS
Fifty-third session
SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 62nd MEETI NG

Hel d at the Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva,
on Monday, 14 April 1997, at 9 p.m

Chai rman : M. SOMOL (Czech Republic)

CONTENTS
R GHTS OF THE CH LD, | NCLUDI NG
(a) STATUS CF THE CONVENTI ON ON THE RIGHTS O THE CH LD,

(b) REPCRT OF THE SPEC AL RAPPORTEUR ON THE SALE OF CH LDREN, CH LD
PROSTI TUTI ON AND CH LD PORNOGRAPHY;

(c) PROGRAMME CF ACTI ON FOR THE ELI M NATI ON OF THE EXPLA TATI ON OF
CH LD LABOR,

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a menorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They shoul d be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Conm ssion
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 97-12738 (B



E/ ON 4/ 1997/ SR 62
page 2

CONTENTS ( conti nued )
(d) QUESTI ON OF A DRAFT OPTI ONAL PROTOCOL TO THE CONVENTI ON ON THE
RIGHTS OF THE CH LD ON THE SALE OF CH LDREN, CH LD PROSTI TUTI ON
AND CH LD PORNOGRAPHY, AS WELL AS THE BASI C MEASURES NEEDED FCR
THEl R PREVENTI ON AND ERADI CATION ( continued)
THE QUESTI ON OF CONSCI ENTI QUS CBJECTI ON TO M LI TARY SERVI CE ( conti nued)
FOLLONMUP TO THE WORLD CONFERENCE ON HUVAN RI GHTS ( conti nued)
DRAFTI NG OF A DECLARATI ON ON THE R GHT AND RESPONSI BI LI TY O | NDI VI DUALS,

GROUPS AND CRGANS OF SOOI ETY TO PROMOTE AND PROTECT UN VERSALLY RECOGN ZED
HUVAN RI GHTS AND FUNDAMENTAL FREEDOVE (1 conti nued )



E/ ON 4/ 1997/ SR 62
page 3

The neeting was called to order at 9.05 p.m

R GHTS OF THE CH LD, | NCLUDI NG
(a) STATUS CF THE CONVENTION ON THE RIGHTS OF THE CH LD,

(b) REPCRT OF THE SPECQ AL RAPPORTEUR ON THE SALE OF CH LDREN, CH LD
PROSTI TUTI ON AND CH LD PORNOGRAPHY;

(c) PROGRAMME CF ACTI ON FOR THE ELI M NATI ON OF THE EXPLA TATI ON OF
CH LD LABOR,

(d) QUESTI ON OF A DRAFT COPTI ONAL PROTOCOL TO THE CONVENTI ON ON THE
RIGHTS OF THE CH LD ON THE SALE OF CH LDREN, CH LD PROSTI TUTI ON
AND CH LD PORNOGRAPHY, AS WELL AS THE BASI C MEASURES NEEDED FOR
THEI R PREVENTI ON AND ERADI CATI ON

(agenda item21) ( continued) (E/ CN 4/1997/93, 94, 95 and Add.1 and 2, 96
and 97; E/ CN 4/Sub.2/1996/25 and Add. 1; A/51/306 and Add.1, A/ 51/456)

1. Ms. TUHOVCAKOVA (Qoserver for S ovakia) said that her del egation
associated itself fully with the statenment by the European Uni on, which
reflected its priorities concerning the protection of children. The
international commnity's interest in the issue was a matter for satisfaction
and the results obtained by the working groups on the two optional protocols
to the Convention on the Rghts of the Child, the work of the Speci al
Rapporteur on the sale of children, child prostitution and child pornography
and the assistance provided to children in regions in conflict were inportant
contributions to a legal framework for the realization of the rights of the
chi | d.

2. However, nunerous practices harnful to children continued to exist and
threatened their growth and devel opnment. The universal ratification of the
Convention on the Rghts of the Child was an essential condition for ensuring
children's rights but it was not sufficient initself. Governnments nust
establish a suitable structure to prevent violations of children's rights.

The Convention on the R ghts of the Child did, however, guarantee the
protection of children's rights in general terns and her del egation

congratul ated the working groups for the work on the optional protocols to the
Conventi on.

3. M. SUAREZ (Cbserver for Venezuela) said that despite progress in recent
years in the pronmotion and protection of the rights of children and the
accession of a large nunber of States to the Convention on the R ghts of the
Child, serious problens remained to be solved. H's Government shared the
concern of the Committee on the Rights of the Child, which had stressed the
adverse effects of economc and social problens on the situation of children.
Venezuel a was particularly sensitive to problens of unenpl oynent and poverty
as a result of the serious economc crisis it had experienced, to the
detrinent of the population in general and children in particular. H's
Covernnent conti nued, however, to make efforts to neet its conmm tnents under
t he Conventi on.



E/ ON 4/ 1997/ SR 62
page 4

4, Soci al policies in education, health and nutrition in Venezuel a gave
special attention to children and young peopl e, and special |egislation had
been enacted and governnent bodi es established in that regard. Programmes had
been inpl enented for nothers and babies, for day care and for abandoned
children. Health and community educati on programres pronoted preventive care.
Wher e education was concerned, fam |y subsidi es guaranteed that inpoverished
children had access to education, while pre-school coverage was bei ng expanded
i n poor areas.

5. Wth reference to the work of the Conmttee on the R ghts of the Child,
his CGovernnent believed that efficiency in the subm ssion and consi deration of
State party reports required States to submt their reports on tine, and al so
required the Commttee to consider themon tine. The Venezuel an authorities
were finalizing Venezuela's first report to the Commttee, which would be
submtted in the near future

6. H s del egation wi shed to associate itself with the work of the working
group on an optional protocol on the sale of children, child prostitution and
chil d pornography and hoped that it would result in nore efficient protection
of the children affected and their reintegration into society. It furthernore
hoped that consultations on the inpact of arned conflict on children would
contribute to breaking the vicious circle of conflict, inequality and
injustice. Lastly, it was satisfied with the results of the intensive

negoti ations on the draft resolution on the rights of the child. The
reference in the draft to the sale of organs and the traffic in girls marked
i nportant progress in the study of the issue and should be kept in future
resol uti ons.

7. M. BAHRAINI (Coserver for the Islamc Republic of Iran) said that |arge
nunbers of children in the contenporary world were exposed daily to dangers
that hanpered their growh and devel opnent, while the institution of the

fam |y had becone trenendously vulnerable. Cne of the critical areas of
concern was the sexual exploitation of children, which had increasingly becone
a transnational crime. Hs country had been an active participant in the
Wrl d Congress agai nst Commercial Sexual Exploitation of Children, held in

St ockhol min 1996, and in the working group nmeetings to consider an additional
optional protocol to the Convention on the Rights of the Child. For the
wor ki ng group to succeed, there was a need to address the root causes of the
phenonenon, includi ng deprivati on conpounded by poverty and econom c
constraints and underdevel opnent. Wiile poverty and illiteracy were the
breedi ng grounds for the commerci al sexual exploitation of children in some
devel opi ng countries, the main factors in sone devel oped countries were the
deterioration of noral, ethical and famly val ues coupled with insufficient
and inefficient preventive neasures, nationally and internationally.

8. The phenorenon did not exist in his country, thanks to a strong
political will, the rich Islamc cultural heritage, strong famly ties and

| egal neasures against prostitution, corruption, alcoholismand substance
abuse. Measures had al so been taken to inprove nother and child health and
fam |y planning nethods, to raise the literacy rate from47 per cent in 1974
to 78 per cent in 1994 and to close the gender gap in school attendance. The
mass nedi a al so contributed to serving the best interests of children



E/ ON 4/ 1997/ SR 62
page 5

9. H s Covernnent believed that neasures by the international comrunity to
conbat the sale of children, child prostitution and child pornography shoul d

i nclude punitive nmeasures for offenders or their extradition, the cooperation
of all countries with the Special Rapporteur on the sale of children, child
prostitution and child pornography and international |egal neasures to
restrict the negative inpact of audiovisual and information services,
including the Internet, in regard to the sale of children, child prostitution
and chi I d pornography.

10. M. GARNJANA- GOONCHORN  (Cobserver for Thailand) said that while his
del egation was at one with the ains and objectives of the Special Rapporteur
on the sale of children, child prostitution and child pornography, it felt
that her report had been blighted by m suse of statistics, especially in
regard to the situation in Thailand. H's Governnment was determned to

eradi cate child prostitution conpletely and the Thai Parlianment had passed a
tough new anti-prostitution law in 1996 increasing the penalties against child
sex of fenders, brothel owners, procurers and traffickers and introducing
penalties for parents who sold their children into prostitution. Law

enf orcenent neasures included frequent raids on brothels and prem ses

enpl oyi ng conmerci al sex workers. Efforts had been unrelenting in attacking
the fundanmental causes of child prostitution - poverty and ignorance.

Conpul sory school i ng had been increased fromsix to nine years, vocationa
training was being provided in regions known to be sources of commercial sex
workers so that vul nerabl e woren and girls could remain in their villages and
earn a living, and a nunber of public education progranmes were encouragi ng a
change in general attitudes towards prostitution

11. The Thai Covernnent did not deny that trafficking and exploitation of
prostitution were anong Thailand' s nost serious social problenms. H's

del egation took strong exception, however, to the Special Rapporteur's
presentation of statistics on adol escents engaged in prostitution in Thail and
(E/ CN 4/1997/95, para. 69). Those figures had been obtained from questionabl e
sources and the clainms nade were sinply absurd. Such unverified reporting
undermined the credibility of the report. Authoritative sources such as the
Nat i onal Conmi ssion on Wnen's Affairs of Thailand estimated that there were
150, 000 to 200,000 prostitutes in the country, while surveys conducted by

i ndependent non-governnental organi zations such as the Thai Red O oss and
Mahi dol Uni versity had consistently put the nunber of child prostitutes at

bet ween 20, 000 and 40,000. H's delegation had therefore been obliged to
withdraw its sponsorship of draft resolution E/CN 4/1997/L.34, entitled
“Traffic in wonen and girls”, because it could not associate itself with the
amended versi on of operative paragraph 6.

12. M. EIBNER (Christian Solidarity International) said that on his recent
m ssions to north and south Sudan he had obtai ned abundant evi dence of gross
and systematic abuse of the rights of children committed by the Nationa
Islamc Front regine as part of the transfornation of the Sudan into a
totalitarian Islamc State.

13. The abuses included the institution of chattel slavery. He and his
col | eagues had personal |y redeened several hundred sl aves between 1995 and
1997, although they were just a snall fraction of those in captivity. The
victimcomunities were the black Africans of Northern Bahr E Chazal and



E/ ON 4/ 1997/ SR 62
page 6

Sout hern Kordofan and the slave raids were organi zed by the National Islamc
Front. He described the capture and selling of slaves, the |abours inposed by
their owners and the enforced change of cultural identity. Nothing had
materialized fromthe Khartoumreginme's widely publicized promses in 1996 to
facilitate i ndependent investigations into the practice of slavery, although
the country's banned denocratic opposition was actively encouragi ng Arabs and
bl ack Africans to work together for the return of slaves to their famlies.

14. H s organi zation urged the H gh Comm ssioner for Hunman R ghts to secure
the release of all slaves whose |ocation could be traced and to begin tal ks
imediately with the International Commttee of the Red Gross and UNI CEF on
the establishnent of a child-slave tracing progranmre in the Sudan.

15. Ms. SACKSTEIN (Defence for Children International) said that the first
Wrl d Congress agai nst Conmercial Sexual Exploitation of Children in Stockhol m
in August 1996 had achi eved the original partnership of a State, an

i ntergovernmental organi zati on and two networks of non-government a

or gani zati ons coupled with an action-oriented approach and a
pluri-disciplinary orientation, as well as the participation of
representatives both of the nmedia and of children. A strong consensus to
endeavour to put an end to the practice of commercial sexual exploitation of
children had energed fromthe Congress, and participating NG had al ready
begun to dissemnate its conclusions. The NGO focal point |inked the
activities arising out of the Congress with other major devel opments invol ving
children's rights, such as the Machel study submtted to the Commission in
March and the future 1LO convention on intolerable forns of child |abour. The
nmobi | i zation of the international community around the Stockhol m Congress was
an established fact and a uni que opportunity to reduce the sexual exploitation
of children

16. M. SANZ (Pax Romana) said that the suffering of children aroused
particul ar enotion because of their vulnerability and their |ack of

responsi bility for the circunstances. Children's rights were enforceable in

i nternational |aw under the 1989 Convention and it was i ncunbent on
Governnents and public institutions and supranati onal organi zations to protect
them He nentioned in particular the violation of the principles contained in
articles 11, 19, 32, 34, 37 and 40, the cruel and degrading treatnent of
children in Mexi co and Col onbi a and the unjust inprisonnent of mnors in
Israel, Bahrain and China. The facts were in direct contradiction with the
principles which those States, in ratifying the Convention, had officially
undertaken to defend. According to data furnished by UNICEF, over 73 nillion
children were enployed in forced and illegal |abour and deprived of education.
Child prostitution was increasing because it allowed adults to abuse
children's vulnerability; it affected all countries, either as providers of
custoners or as providers of victins.

17. Anot her subj ect of concern was the easy access to child pornography

t hroughout Europe. States should take the necessary neasures to cl ose the

i nternational networks which di ssem nated pornographic material. Wth
reference to international adoption, which the Convention advocated as a
solution for unprotected children, the failure of States to conply with their
obligation of keeping a register of births was a major obstacle that obscured
cases of the abduction and sale of children. Countries which had still not



E/ ON 4/ 1997/ SR 62
page 7

ratified the Convention included the United States of Anerica, despite its

i nsistence on the inclusion of its proposals in the draft optional protocol on
i nvol verent of children in armed conflict. H's organization considered that
the time had cone for the Comm ssion to adopt the final text of the optiona
protocol to prohibit children under 18 fromtaking part in hostilities,

prohi bit non-governmental mlitias fromrecruiting children under 18 and

prohi bit the recruitment of children under 18 as volunteers into the arned
forces.

18. Ms. SARM ENTO (Philippines), speaking in exercise of the right of reply,
said that the statement by the Federaci 6n de Asoci aci ones de Defensa y
Pronoci 6n de | os Derechos Hunanos was grossly exaggerated. Like many ot her
countries, the Philippines were confronted with the nenace of trafficking in
children and child prostitution. However, the Governnent was addressing the
probl em and those found guilty of child abuse and expl oitation were
prosecuted. The Philippines had solid |egislative and adm ni strative bases
for upholding the rights of children and for pronoting their well-being in a
denocratic framework. Mention had al so been nade of hunan rights violations
by the Philippine arny against MuslimFilipinos. The NG speaker had clearly
been unaware of the peace agreenent signed recently by the Governnent and the
Moro National Liberation Front which, it was hoped, would herald an era of
peace, stability and progress in the southern Philippines.

19. The CHAI RVAN announced that the general debate on agenda item 21 had
t hus been concl uded.

THE QUESTI ON OF CONSCI ENTI QUS GBJECTI ON TO M LI TARY SERVI CE (agenda item 23)
(continued) (E/ ON 4/1997/99; E/ CN 4/1997/ N3O0 1, 39 and 81)

20. M. MONOD (War Resisters International) said that since the adoption by
consensus of the Conm ssion's resol ution on consci entious objection in 1987,
the constitutions of several countries recognized the right to refuse to
performmlitary service for religious or ethical reasons and nade provision
for an alternative service. 1In some countries, civilian service was one and a
half times or twice as long as nmlitary service. 1In others, the |aw provided
for a civilian service organi zed by the arny which was twice the | ength of the
mlitary service and of a punitive nature, sonething that ran counter to the
spirit of the Conmssion's resolution. Regulatory instruments were urgently
needed in countries |ike Belarus and Russi a where conscientious objectors
remai ned under the threat of arrest. It was desirable that the right to
refuse mlitary service should be recognized and that a civilian service not
organi zed by the arny should be introduced for objectors; civilian service
shoul d not reproduce the lifestyle of the arnmy. In still other countries, the
right to conscientious objection and civilian service was not recognized.

21. There was an urgent need for countries which had adopted by consensus
Conmi ssion resol ution 1995/ 83 on consci entious objection to take the necessary
steps towards its inplenmentation by nodifying their constitutions. |In order
to encourage Governments to take such action, his organi zati on suggest ed
subnmitting the resolution for readoption in 1997. Conscientious objectors
deserved the Commission's full support in the struggle for a world without
weapons.



E/ ON 4/ 1997/ SR 62
page 8

22. Ms. BRETT (Friends Wrld Commttee for Consultation), speaking on behal f
of the Friends Wrld Commttee and Atmesty International, said that the right
to conscientious objection to mlitary service was not marginal to
international human rights protection and pronotion but a basic conponent of
the right to freedom of thought, conscience and religion. Bodies such as the
Conmi ssion on Hunman Rights, the Human R ghts Committee, the Council of Europe
and the European Parlianment had urged Governments to guarantee that

i ndi vi dual s objecting to conpul sory mlitary service were given the
opportunity to performalternative service of a genuine civilian character and
had recommended that they should be permtted to regi ster as conscientious

obj ectors at any tine before conscription, after call-up papers had been
issued or during mlitary service. On 15 April, Amesty International would
launch its canpaign on the right to conscientious objection to mlitary
service in Europe with a view to achieving greater famliarity with and w der

i npl enentation of international and regional standards in that continent; the
supporting nmaterial for the canpaign highlighted concerns in 22 European
countries.

23. The failure to provide for the exercise of the right of conscientious
objection to mlitary service was not linted to Europe. Her organization and
Amesty International therefore called for the inmedi ate and unconditi onal

rel ease of all persons detained or inprisoned because they had been refused
the right to register their conscientious objection to mlitary service or to
performa genuine alternative service of non-punitive length and of a purely
civilian character, and urged all States to re-examne their |egislation and
practices in relation to conscientious objection to mlitary service in order
to ensure full conpliance with Conm ssion resol ution 1995/ 83.

24, Ms. SRIVASTAVA (Indian Council of Education) said that her organization
supported Conmmi ssion on Human Rights resol uti on 1995/83 appealing to al

States to enact |egislation and take neasures aimed at exenption frommlitary
service on the basis of conscientious objection. The right to refuse mlitary
service for reasons of conscience was inherent in the concept of freedom of

t hought, conscience and religion as set out in the Universal Declaration of
Human R ghts and recogni zed by a nunber of States which had introduced
alternative service of a non-conbatant or civilian nature

25. The Comm ssion on Human R ghts had taken up the question of
conscientious objection to mlitary service as early as 1971. Wile there had
al ways been general agreenent regarding an individual's duty towards his
country and its treaty obligations, there had al so been a difference of
opi ni on concerning the desirability of permtting any exception to bearing
arns for active mlitary service on grounds such as conscienti ous objection
religious belief or noral conviction. The criteria for granting conscientious
objector status in the United States, however, had broadened gradually from
the First World War up to the Viet Nam War resistance novenent and the concept
had gai ned respectability.

26. In the recent past there had been many instances of conscientious
objection to mlitary service in the United States and in several European
countries. Her organization considered that, far from encouragi ng

di sobedi ence, such devel opments were positive checks on the undi scerning use
of force against political opponents. Mlitary service should be voluntary



E/ ON 4/ 1997/ SR 62
page 9

and efforts for its retention nust be supported by econom c incentives. Her
or gani zati on suggested that the m ninumage for State recruitment to the
mlitary should be 20 years and that the State shoul d recogni ze the citizen's
right to conscientious objection for reasons of consci ence or profound

convi ction and should act inpartially on clear and wel|-defined grounds.

27. The CHAI RVAN announced that the general debate on agenda item 23 had
t hus been concl uded.

FOLLON UP TO THE WORLD CONFERENCE ON HUVAN RI GHTS (agenda item 22) ( conti nued)
(B/CN. 4/1997/3, E/CON 4/1997/98 and Add.1 and Corr.1; E CON 4/1997/ NXQJ 34)

28. M. VASSYLENKO (Wkraine) said that the Wrld Conference on Human Rights
had stressed the need to link the forthcomng fiftieth anniversary of the

Uni versal Declaration of Hunman R ghts with the five-year review of the Vienna

Decl arati on and Programme of Action in order to evaluate the progress nade in

def endi ng human rights. Such an eval uati on shoul d include a thorough anal ysis
of achi evenments as well as of renaining obstacl es.

29. H s del egati on commended the efforts of the United Nations H gh

Conmi ssioner for Human Rights as reflected in his report (E CN 4/1997/98),

whi ch contained a clear picture and an overall vision of the further

devel opnent of the United Nations human rights programme based on the
recommendati ons of the Wrld Conference concerning human rights nmachinery,
equal ity and non-di scrimnation, prevention of human rights viol ations,

devel opnent and huran rights, technical assistance and human rights education.
In order to inplement that programme the H gh Conm ssioner nust maintain a
per manent di al ogue with States and international organizations, coordinate the
activities of the United Nations human rights bodi es, provide advisory
services and address human rights challenges in the field.

30. A major human rights issue was the strengthening of the Conmi ssion on
Human R ghts; one inportant means of achieving that goal was the review and
rationalization of its agenda, further biennialization of which was highly
desirable. Efforts should be nade to elimnate double standards and a

sel ective approach to the assessnment of human rights issues; human rights
problens in different parts of the world needed to be evaluated in strict
conpliance with international standards.

31. H s del egation considered that one of the nost pressing tasks was to
enhance the efficiency of the United Nations human rights bodi es by upgradi ng
nmoni toring procedures ainmed at the effective inplenmentation of international
human rights standards. |nproved coordination between human rights nechani sns
was needed to avoid duplication and | egal contradictions. O particular
significance was the field dial ogue of the H gh Conm ssioner and the Centre
for Human Rights with individual countries. The programre of technical
cooperation needed to be strengthened still further in order to bring national
legislation into line with international human rights standards.

32. Since the Wrld Conference on Huinan R ghts there had been encouragi ng
devel opnents, but reports of flagrant human rights violations continued.
Those responsi bl e shoul d be puni shed in accordance with international |aw and
donmestic legislation. Hs Governnent reiterated its support for the



E/ ON 4/ 1997/ SR 62
page 10

international tribunals for the prosecution of persons responsible for serious
violations of international humanitarian |aw and human rights commtted in the
territories of the former Yugoslavia and Rnanda and supported proposal s ai ned
at strengthening United Nations control nechanisns to prevent mass and
systematic violations of human rights. Such nmechani snms coul d be integrated
into coordinated international activities on conflict prevention and
peacekeepi ng. The strengthening of the preventive activities of the

United Nations hurman rights bodi es was indispensable if they were to function
efficiently.

33. H s del egation supported the H gh Comm ssioner’'s proposal for increased
cooperation between United Nations human rights bodi es and ot her

United Nations agencies in order to maintain a pernmanent exchange of

i nformati on, experience and expertise. The inplenentation of the Conm ssion's
deci sion on human rights and the environnment, in which the Secretary-Cenera
was requested to prepare a consolidated report based on the deliberati ons on
Agenda 21 at the General Assenbly and in the rel evant United Nations bodies,
coul d be an exanpl e of an extended partnership of that nature.

34. Harnful changes to the hunman environnent required new standards to
strengthen hunan rights protection. Wile his delegation objected to the
Conmi ssion' s di scussing environnental problens as such, it was convinced that
t he Comm ssion shoul d consider the question of environmental hunman rights and
the legal nmachinery for their protection.

35. M. LI Baodong (China) said that a correct understandi ng and

i npl enentation of the Vienna Declaration and Programre of Action would have a
maj or inpact on the pronotion of international cooperation in the field of
human rights. How to pave the way for a snooth followup to the Wrld
Conference on Human Ri ghts had becone a priority for the internationa
community as well as for the Comm ssion

36. The Vi enna Decl arati on and Progranme of Action was a conprehensive
docunent which reflected the views of nost countries on human rights issues;
the followup to the Wrld Conference required a bal anced and inpartia
under st andi ng of the document and m sinterpretation should be avoided. 1In the
case of certain countries, only civil and political rights were enphasized
whi | e econonic, social and cultural rights were neglected; attention was paid
to the universality of human rights but not to national, regional and
historical particularities. Such a line of action was not conducive to the
followup to the Wrld Conference.

37. The Vi enna Decl arati on and Programre of Action stated that denocracy,
devel opnent and respect for human rights and fundanmental freedons were

i nterdependent and mutual ly reinforcing. In the absence of sustained econonic
devel opnent or the free participation of the people in the running of the
State, human rights could not be fully guaranteed. H's Governnent had | earned
fromits own experience of reformthat only by concentrating its efforts on
econoni ¢ devel opnent under the precondition of national and social stability,
whil e sparing no effort to build up denocracy and a | egal system could a
country like China achieve steady progress and full enjoynment of human rights.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR 62
page 11

38. The Vi enna Decl aration and Programmre of Action also stated that the
pronotion and protection of all human rights and fundanental freedons nust be
considered as a priority objective of the United Nations in accordance with
its purposes and principles, in particular the purpose of internationa
cooperation. States were required to abide by the purposes and principles of
the United Nations and to conduct dial ogue and cooperation in human rights on
a basis of equality. Some countries, however, politicized human rights and
adopted a confrontational approach to them which seriously damaged the nornal
work of the Comm ssion. The devel oping countries had shown a desire to

repl ace confrontati on by di al ogue and cooperation on human rights issues in
Ceneral Assenbly resolution 51/100, entitled “Enhancenent of internationa
cooperation in the field of human rights”, but some western countries had tine
and again deviated fromthe spirit of cooperation advocated in the Vienna
Declaration. Any political confrontation on the pretext of human rights coul d
only lead to a dead end.

39. The message of the Wrld Conference on Human R ghts in Vienna was that
as long as the Conmm ssion and the internati onal community denonstrated a
spirit of cooperation, consultation and seeki ng of common ground, they could
contribute to the cause of pronoting and protecting human rights. H's

del egation appeal ed to the countries concerned to respond to the demand of the
devel opi ng countries for cooperation, dialogue and consensus and to give up
their erroneous approach of confrontation in the human rights field.

40. M. SYMONDES (United Nations Educational, Scientific and Qultura

O gani zation) said that one of the main results of the Wrld Conference on
Human R ghts had been the recognition of the inportance of human rights
education, which it had stressed as essential for the pronotion of stable

rel ati ons anmong communities and for fostering nutual understandi ng and peace.
In proclaimng the United Nations Decade for Human R ghts Education, the
Ceneral Assenbly had referred to the Wrld Plan of Action on Education for
Human R ghts and Denocracy, adopted in Montreal in March 1993, and had
recal | ed that education for human rights and denocracy was itself a hunan
right.

41. UNESQO col | aborated first and forenmost with Governnents in framng
national policies and strategies to inprove curricula and textbooks, teaching
nmet hods and the functioning of educational institutions. It also cooperated
cl osely with non-governmental organizati ons and vari ous educati onal networks
and speci al i zed structures, including Associated Schools. Another new

net work consi sted of the UNESCO Chairs on Hunan Ri ghts, Denocracy and Peace
established in 22 countries throughout the world. Education for peace, hunman
rights, denocracy, international understanding and tol erance had becone an
essential part of the UNESCO project “Towards a Culture of Peace”. The ains
of such education were not linmted to the pronmoti on of know edge but al so
enbraced the creation of skills and behavioural patterns.

42. The Wirld Conference had al so called for the strengthening of the
enj oynent of economc, social and cultural rights. That did not nmean that
there was a need to el aborate new cul tural rights, although some existing



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR 62
page 12

rights needed further devel opnent. Qultural rights were not inmmune to
econom c, social, scientific or technol ogi cal devel opnents. The information
revol ution, for exanple, had nunerous consequences for freedom of expression
and the right to the protection of the noral and material interests resulting
fromscientific, literary or artistic production

43. Like all nenbers of the United Nations famly, UNESCO was preparing its
programre to celebrate the fiftieth anniversary of the Universal Declaration
of Human Rights, including a special project to rai se awareness of human
rights within its Secretariat. In accordance with the Menorandum of
Under st andi ng si gned by the Drector-General of UNESCO and the H gh

Comm ssioner for Human Rights, initiatives would be taken to intensify
education for human rights and to introduce the text of the Universal
Declaration in all schools. H's organization would |like to use the
celebration to intensify reflection on cultural rights, including the right
to education

44, Ms. MARKIDES (Cbserver for Cyprus) said that 4 years after the adoption
of the Vienna Decl aration and Programre of Action and al most 20 years after

the adoption of the Convention on the Elimnation of Al Forns of

Di scrimnation agai nst Wnen, the internati onal community still had a | ong way
to go to achi eve gender equality and to renmove all obstacles to the

advancenent and enpower ment of wonen. The Secretary-Ceneral of the

Uni ted Nations had enphasi zed that women nust have equal access to political
power and deci sion-naking in order to contribute to the well-being and

progress of society.

45, Despite the continuing Turkish occupation of nore than 37 per cent of
its territory, Cyprus had achi eved consi derabl e progress in pronoting the
advancenent of wonen and in its policies to elimnate discrimnation against
them by establishing an Equal Qpportunity Conm ssion, |egislation on equal pay
and special civil courts for famly matters.

46. A growing political and social awareness was energing on the part of
wonen in Cyprus as was denonstrated by their efforts to pronote their status
and by their struggle for the right tolife, liberty and security of the

i ndi vi dual and freedom of novenent and settlenent in a united country. In
Cyprus, woren continued to suffer systematic violations of their basic human
rights and fundanmental freedons as a result of the Turkish invasion, when nany
wonen had been killed and ill-treated and rape had been prevalent. Wnen in
Cyprus were fighting for the right of refugee wonen to return hone, for the
right of the relatives of mssing persons to be inforned of their fate and for
the rights of the wonmen living in the occupied part of Cyprus under conditions
that were far fromnormal. The Commission could not remain indifferent to the
plight of woren in Cyprus.

47. Ms. AQULINA (Coserver for Malta) said that her del egation agreed with
the view that human rights, peace and devel opnent forned the triad of goal s of
the United Nations and the world comunity and that a United Nations hunman
rights programe should be able to neet the needs of the internationa
community by taking both preventive and responsive action. Technica




E/ ON 4/ 1997/ SR 62
page 13

cooperation, in the formof constitutional and |egislative assistance, hunan
rights training and assistance in the establishnent of human rights
institutions, went a long way in that regard.

48. The Medium Term Pl an for 1998-2001, adopted by the General Assenbly at
its fifty-first session, identified the strategic objectives for a hunman
rights programme for the twenty-first century. Her del egation agreed that the
mai n obj ectives should be to enphasize the inportance of human rights in

i nternational /nati onal agendas, to pronote international cooperation for human
rights and to stimulate and coordi nate action across the United Nations system
in the context of the other reforns taking place within the O ganization.

49. The work of the Comm ssion had shown that solidarity and goodw || coul d
bring results and provide an opportunity for States to | ook at their

achi evenents and failures. Her del egation hoped that 1998 woul d nmark the
start of another 50 years of contributing to the goal of ensuring the dignity
of the hunan race

50. M. ALAEE (Cbserver for the Islamc Republic of Iran) said that the
followup to the Wrld Conference on Hunan R ghts should focus on natters of a
general nature, such as international cooperation and coordi nati on of human
rights activities and the streanmtining of the United Nations human rights
machi nery.

51. Certain requirenments nust be fulfilled to achieve the goal of pronoting
the international instrunments and their universal ratification. The Vienna
Decl aration and Programme of Action called on the Secretary-General to
initiate a dialogue with States which had not acceded to human rights
treaties. Practical measures should be taken to establish adequate machinery
to facilitate open di scussion among nenber States, intergovernnental and
non-gover nmental organi zations to identify the real obstacles to ratification
There was a need to involve States which had not yet acceded to the
international instruments by providing a forumfor the exchange of views

at the grass-roots level. Ratifying States shoul d be given assurances t hat
they would be legally authorized to inplenment the instrunments ratified in
accordance with their cultural and political circunstances. Only in that
context could the internati onal comrunity ensure universal access to the main
i nternational instruments.

52. The Wirl d Conference on Hunan R ghts had al so called for the

el aboration of new nornms and instrunments. That process, which could already
be seen in the elaboration of optional protocols to sone najor treaties, must
be conducted in full awareness of the reality of the world and with due regard
toinfluential elements in the evaluation of human rights violations. H's
Covernnent woul d appreci ate debate on the contents of the protocols under
consideration, with particular regard to economc, social and cultural rights
and child pornography and child prostitution

53. Anot her neasure which woul d contribute to pronoting the principa
international instrunents would be to reduce the reporting burden on

States while maintaining the effectiveness of the reporting systemin the
United Nations treaty bodies. Furthernore, technical cooperation and advi sory



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR 62
page 14

services programmes played an inmportant role in building up nationa
capacities to ensure the pronotion of human rights in specific countries
it was very inportant to exclude political considerations fromtheir

i npl enrent ati on.

54. As the year 1998 approached, heral ding the commenoration of the

Uni versal Declaration of Human R ghts and the five-year review of the

Vi enna Decl aration and Progranmme of Action, it was clear that a nmere

cel ebration of the two Declarations and a cosnetic review woul d not bring
substantive changes in the world programme of work for the true realizati on of
human rights. A critical review of the past, however, would help to ensure
the objective inplementati on of the Declarations.

55. M. NDIAYE (Coserver for Senegal) said that the United Nations Centre
for Human R ghts had devel oped substantially in recent years; its role
currently included inplementing the decisions of the Commi ssion on Human
Rights, acting as secretariat for the Sub-Conm ssion and treaty bodies,
assisting and advising States and facilitating the many special procedures
establ i shed by the Comm ssion. The aimof the restructuring exercise was to
nmake the Centre nore efficient within the limts of its financial and hunan
resources. Wile his Governnent did not reject in principle the proposals
made in the context of the restructuring, it suggested that they should be
subnmitted to the General Assenbly for approval and di scussed within the

Comm ssion on Human Rights. It had observed that arrangenents which had been
presuned to be transitional had al ready becone pernmanent and that deci sions
concerning the future of the staff had been taken without a decision by the
CGeneral Assenbly or the consent of the nenber States. H's del egation was
particul arly concerned about the situation of staff menbers from devel opi ng
countries, the Africans anong whom hel d only subordi nate posts.

56. Wth reference to the basic consistency between the restructuring and
the priorities of the Wrld Conference on Human Rights, his delegation feared
that the programmes relating to econonmc, social and cultural rights, the
right to devel opnment, the Second Decade to Conbat Raci smand Raci a

Di scrimnation and i ndi genous peoples would virtually di sappear. An

excl usively functional approach to human rights would thus elimnate a nunber
of inportant progranmmes.

57. Wth regard to questions of funding, the Centre for Human Rights had an
enor mous wor kl oad that could be eased only by a considerable financial effort.
The internati onal conmmunity could not sinply declare its commitnent to the
pronmoti on and protection of human rights w thout providing the human and
financial resources its organs required. The point was not nerely to keep
funding at the sane level but to be prepared to nmake further resources
avai |l abl e as and when necessary.

58. Ms. MALONL  (Indian GCouncil of Education) said that her del egation

wel comed the report of the United Nations H gh Comm ssioner for Human Rights
(E/ CN 4/1997/98) on pronoting a culture of human rights in which everyone bore
a responsibility and in which Governments were expected actively to protect
human rights, prevent religious conflicts, eradicate hunger and poverty and
pronot e sustai nabl e devel opment. However, since devel opi ng countries were
overburdened with probl ens of hunger, disease, illiteracy and poverty, it was
essential for the international community to support the action of Governnents



E/ ON 4/ 1997/ SR 62
page 15

and non-governnmental organi zations in pursuit of social objectives. Her

organi zati on was al so highly appreciative of the United Nati ons Decade for
Human R ghts Education. There was furthernore a crucial |ink between
denocracy, devel opnent and hunan rights; without denocratic structures, people
could not participate in the civic life of a community and gover nrment
accountability was indi spensabl e.

59. The Beijing Conference had highlighted the need for women' s enpower ment
but, despite various initiatives that had been taken, the section of the

Vi enna Decl aration and Progranmme of Action concerning the status of wonen
still remained to be inplenented. The crimnal justice systemin nost
societies was insensitive to the needs of wormen. Her del egation requested the
Comm ssion to take a serious | ook at continued viol ence agai nst wonen and
desi gn speci al programmes to enhance awareness in the world comunity
regardi ng gender issues. It also suggested that the Commi ssion should include
a separate itemon the status of wonen in its agenda

60. Ms. MACIAS (Federaci 6n de Asoci aci ones de Defensa y Pronoci 6n de | os
Der echos Humanos) said that, as the twentieth century drewto an end with
ideologies in a state of crisis, human rights constituted the only universa
| anguage of mankind for the discussion of major issues. At a time of

gl obal i zation, major problens also had a gl obal dinmension and nust be
addressed froma universal perspective. The Vienna Conference had been aware
of that franme of reference and had established the universal nature of hunan
rights, stressing their indivisibility. Al too often, however, econonic,
social and cultural rights were forgotten or relegated to second place. |If
the theory of indivisibility was true, failure to realize those rights neant
that civil and political rights lost credibility and were difficult to
protect.

61. At the end of the twentieth century, the nost w despread human rights
violations stemmed directly or indirectly fromthe terrible spread of poverty
inthe world. Poor States were often powerless to realize social rights. The
responsibility of States extended to the international economc order, and
that was particularly true of the weal thiest States which nost benefited from
it. The doctrine of the indivisibility of human rights which had energed from
the Vi enna Conference needed to be nore consistently observed. The Conference
had recogni zed the inportance of NG in defending and pronoting human rights,
but nuch renai ned to be done to develop the rel ationship between the

United Nations, States and NG3s. The |ong experience of the latter and their
sensitivity to human rights issues nade themirrepl aceable in pronoting the
cause of hunman rights.

62. Maj or international efforts were being nmade by UNESCO and the Centre for
Human R ghts regardi ng the progressive introduction of syllabuses for
educational institutions which included the theory and practice of human
rights. Human rights constituted a great hope for the future of mankind but
the critical spirit that informed them nust continue to exist.

63. M. MENDEZ (Conmmission for the Defense of Human Rights in

Central America) said that the Wrld Conference on Hunan R ghts had recogni zed
that the human rights of wonen and girls were an inalienable part of universa
human rights and that viol ence and sexual exploitation and internationa



E/ ON 4/ 1997/ SR 62
page 16

trafficking in persons were inconpatible with human dignity. It had al so
called on the General Assenbly to adopt the Declaration on the Elimnation of
Vi ol ence agai nst Wnen and had obtai ned an undertaking fromthe United Nations
to pronote universal ratification of the Convention on the Elimnation of A
Fornms of Discrimnation agai nst Wnen (CEDAW by the year 2000. H s

organi zation considered it essential for the protection of wonen's rights that
an optional protocol to that Convention should be adopted. The need for such
an instrunment had been expressed on vari ous occasions by the internationa
community and nost particularly at the Beijing Wrld Conference on Wmen

whi ch had stated that existing machinery for the inplenmentation of the
Convention was i nadequate. An optional protocol would contribute to

i ncorporating women's rights into the work of the United Nations system since
it would create case law in that respect.

64. H s organi zation therefore believed that the protocol nust provide for a
conpl ai nts and/ or conmuni cati ons procedure; machinery for investigating cases
of systematic violations of wonen's rights; opportunities for communications
to be transmtted by individual woren, groups, networks or NG3s; the
opportunity to invoke the articles of the Convention in a communication; the
assurance that all articles were enforceable in the event of the inpairnent of
rights protected by the Convention; more extensive public dissem nation of the
resul ts of communications and investigations; the possibility of resorting to
such procedures in certain circunstances even when domestic renedi es had not
been exhausted; and correctional neasures that would contribute to

strengt hening internati onal human rights | aw.

65. Ms. ARGETA (H Salvador) said that the Wrld Conference on Human R ghts
had provi ded an opportunity to assess achi evenents and obstacles in the field
of human rights and recognition of the indivisibility of human rights and

their relation to peace, denocracy and devel oprment, as well as the recognition
of the rights of wormen and girls as an inalienable part of human rights, and
the establishnent of the Ofice of the Hgh Conmm ssioner for Hunman R ghts.

66. Speci fic neasures had been taken within the United Nations systemto
strengt hen coordi nated action to deal with the new needs and chal | enges in the
area of human rights. Her Governnent had wel coned the Econom c and Soci a
Council's decision to devote its coordination segnent in 1998 to a fol |l ow up
of the inplenentation of the Vienna Declaration and Programre of Action, which
would be a najor contribution to the efforts initiated. The Medi um Term Pl an
adopted by the General Assenbly at its fifty-first session included the
pronotion of human rights as a priority area of work for the United Nations
and clearly identified the strategic objectives of the United Nations hurman
rights programme for the comng century.

67. Wth the celebration of the fiftieth anniversary of the Universa

Decl aration of Human Rights and the five-year review of the Vienna Declaration
and Programme of Action in 1998, the international comunity woul d have an

i deal opportunity to renewits commtmrent to hunan rights by highlighting
their inportance in national and international action programmes, considering
sui tabl e neans for pronoting international hunman rights cooperation and
encouragi ng the ratification and inpl ementati on of international standards.
The internati onal conmunity nmust continue to support activities in the field
and advi sory services and technical assistance to strengthen national human



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR 62
page 17

rights infrastructures while at the same tine giving priority to preventive
action with special enphasis on human rights education. Covernnents and the
organi zations, institutions, agencies and progranmmes of the United Nations
system nmust therefore continue to work together wth intergovernmental and
non-gover nment al organi zati ons and nmaintain their dialogue in order to
strengt hen the human rights progranme.

68. M. STROHAL (Austria) said that the Vienna Decl aration and Progranme of
Action continued to provide the United Nations, the regional hunman rights
organi zations and the international comunity with a franework of principles
and activities which charted the course of action in the field of human rights
into the next century. The Conference's pronouncenents on universality and on
the indivisibility and interdependence of human rights continued to guide the
work of Covernments. The reconmendations of the Vienna Declaration and
Programre of Action had been taken up in nunerous initiatives within the

Comm ssion and el sewhere and the call of the Wrld Conference on Human Rights
for a United Nations systemw de approach to human rights issues had been

refl ected at subsequent United Nations conferences.

69. The United Nations human rights programme had undergone significant
changes since the Wrld Conference on Hunan Rights, the nmbst visible of which
had been the establishnent of the post of H gh Conmm ssioner for Hunman R ghts.
M. Ayal a-Lasso' s nost inportant achi everent had been the increasing
operationalization of the human rights pronotion and protection activities of
the United Nations while he had also initiated the overhaul of the Centre for
Human R ghts, which had been | ong overdue

70. The Vi enna Decl aration and Progranmme of Action had urged United Nations
human ri ghts programmes and agenci es to enhance cooperation and had al so
recommrended that the executive heads of United Nations agencies shoul d assess
the inpact of their strategies and policies on the enjoynent of human rights
at their annual neetings. Thus far, however, only linited progress had been
made i n devel opi ng such a conprehensi ve approach to the pronoti on and
protection of human rights by integrating theminto the mainstream of

United Nations activities. No systematic and permanent United Nations

i nter-agency coordination nechani smfor human rights issues had yet been
established. Furthernore, the pronotion and protection of human rights had
not yet been fully integrated into the framework for coordinated followup to
international conferences. 1In his delegation's view, the Programre of Action
adopted at the Wrld Conference on Human R ghts represented an integra
conponent of the outcome of recent United Nations conferences and shoul d be
fully integrated into follow up nechanisns.

71. That issue therefore needed to be addressed in the ongoi ng process of
overall United Nations reform H s delegation was pleased to note that the
Secretary-Ceneral considered hunan rights to be one of the main sectors of
United Nations activities, an approach which reflected the cross-cutting
nature of human rights issues

72. In addition to a nore effective secretariat in the Centre for Human
Rights in Geneva, the New York office of the H gh Conmm ssioner al so needed to
be strengthened. It had been agreed at the Wrld Conference that a

first review of progress in the inplenentation of human rights commtnents
woul d be undertaken on the occasion of the fiftieth anniversary of the



E/ ON 4/ 1997/ SR 62
page 18

Uni versal Declaration of Human R ghts. The five-year review of the Vienna
Decl arati on and Programme of Action should al so serve to assess existing hunan
rights activities in the United Nations system In 1996, the Comm ssion had
recommended that the Economic and Social Council shoul d consider devoting the
coordi nation segnent at its substantive session in 1998 to the question of
coordinated foll owup to the Vienna Decl aration and Programme of Action. That
coordi nation segnent shoul d be based on the report on neasures taken by

Uni ted Nations programmes and agencies in the field of human rights and on the
coordinating role of the H gh Comm ssi oner.

73. It was his delegation's sincere hope that Human Rights Year 1998 woul d
provi de an opportunity to recreate the nmomentumof the Wrld Conference to
strengthen the United Nations human rights programme. The H gh Commi ssi oner
for Human Rights could play a key role in the preparation both of the
fiftieth anniversary of the Universal Declaration of Human R ghts and the
five-year review of the Vienna Declaration and Programme of Action. |In order
to nmake Human Rights Year 1998 a success, it would be necessary to nobilize
all sectors of society in all parts of the world for the advancenent of hunman
rights. In a nunber of countries, planning activities were al ready under way
and in his own country NG had formed a national coalition to prepare

for 1998. H's del egation hoped that international NGO with broad-based
affiliations would contribute to nobilizing NGs in all parts of the world and
bring national initiatives together to facilitate the exchange of ideas and
the coordinati on of national and international activities. Hunan R ghts

Year 1998 was concerned with the better inplenmentation of existing
international human rights standards, including the pronotion of universal
ratification of the principal human rights instrunents. Additional efforts
were required to honour the commtnents made both in the Universal Declaration
and in the Vienna Declaration and Programme of Action so as to enter well
prepared into Human Rights Year 1998.

74. M. BOHR (International O ganization for the Devel opment of Freedom

of Education) said that the Wrld Conference on Human Rights had stressed

two issues which his organization considered to be of prine inportance -
econom c, social and cultural rights and human rights education. For the
past three years, his organization and the Wrld University Service, in

col | aboration with the H gh Commi ssioner for Human Rights/Centre for Human

R ghts and UNESCO had been organi zing a sunmer university on hurman rights and
the right to education in Geneva during the session of the Sub-Conmm ssion on
Prevention of Discrimnation and Protection of Mnorities. It had arisen out
of ajoint effort by a large group of human rights institutions. At its 1996
session the participants, comng from22 countries, had adopted a final
declaration calling on the international community to recognize the
indivisibility of human rights and requesting the establishment of an
international court of justice for human rights and the inpl ementati on of
policies that would permt sustainabl e devel opnent and guarantee the access of
everyone to education. The programre for 1997 woul d conprise three new units:
priorities in human rights and the issues of indigenous peoples and et hnic,
religious and cultural mnorities; cultures and religions and the universal
nature of human rights with particular reference to indi genous questions; and
an introduction to the use of new technologies in the field of human rights.



E/ ON 4/ 1997/ SR 62

page 19
75. Wt hout adequate training, an authentic human rights culture coul d
not be achieved. It was to be deplored that the Voluntary Fund for the

Uni ted Nations Decade for Human R ghts Educati on was not yet operational

Al t hough Conmi ssion resol utions often stated that human rights educati on was a
matter of priority, the means were not being nade avail able to inpl enent that
priority. H s organization urged nmenber States to consider that aspect in a
resol uti on on the subject.

76. The CHAI RVAN announced that the general debate on agenda item 22 had
t hus been concl uded.

DRAFTI NG OF A DECLARATI ON ON THE R GHT AND RESPONSI BI LI TY OF | NDI VI DUALS
GROUPS AND CRGANS OF SOOI ETY TO PROMOTE AND PROTECT UNI VERSALLY RECOGNI ZED
HUMAN RI GHTS AND FUNDAMENTAL FREEDOVS (agenda item 20) ( conti nued)

(E/ ON. 4/1997/ 92)

77. M. RAVALOSON (Madagascar) expressed his del egation's di sappoi nt ment
that lack of consensus was del aying the work of finalizing the draft
declaration on the right and responsibility of individuals, groups and organs
of society to pronote and protect universally recogni zed human rights and
fundanental freedons. The finalization of the declaration would constitute

a nmaj or advance and woul d be a highly synbolic gesture. H's del egation
therefore proposed that the mandate of the Wbrking G oup shoul d be extended
for athirteenth and |l ast year with the obligation to finalize the draft
declaration, with or without a consensus, and submt it to the

Ceneral Assenbly for adoption in 1998, with or without a vote. The

non-gover nrent al organi zati ons, social institutions, associations and

i ndi vidual s involved in the defence and pronotion of human rights needed a
declaration to validate their actions and to have roomfor manoeuvre. H's
del egation appealed to all States to guarantee the physical and nora
integrity and freedomof action and nmovernent of all those involved in
pronoting and protecting human rights; they deserved the Conmmission's tribute
for the courage with which they perforned their m ssion.

78. M. van RIJSSEN (Netherlands), speaking on behalf of the European Union
and Bul garia, the Czech Republic, Estonia, Hungary, Latvia, Lithuania, Poland,
Romani a, Sl ovakia, S ovenia and Cyprus, said that he wished to call attention
to the courageous peopl e known as “hunan rights defenders” who were often
deprived of speech by their own Governnents. Covernnents shoul d, instead,
take their criticismconstructively. Human rights defenders were peopl e who
spoke out about the rights of their conpatriots in their own countries, who
defended the rights of free trade unions, and who risked inprisonment by
saying out |oud what was stated in the Universal Declaration of Human R ghts.
They used only their voices and their pens agai nst a power exercised w thout
restraint.

79. A working group had started nore than a decade previously to draft a
declaration to ensure the rights of human rights defenders and its fina
session should be held in 1998. Wile many nmenber States were commtted
to that end, sone had stressed the obligations and duties of human rights
def enders. To nmention obligations other than the responsibility to speak



E/ ON 4/ 1997/ SR 62
page 20

out when human rights were violated, when Governnments did not fulfil their
obligations or when a society was governed through fear was to curtail the
rights of human rights defenders. Wen Governnents felt obliged to rule
through fear, it was because they were afraid to hear about their own

obl i gati ons.

80. The comm tment of Governnents to universal human rights should secure
the rights of everyone, including human rights defenders. Even wi thout a
speci al declaration, human rights instrunents already inplied protection of
human rights defenders and their freedomto work for the protection and
pronoti on of human rights. The group of del egati ons on whose behal f he was
speaking called on the H gh Comm ssioner for Human Rights and all rapporteurs,
representatives and working groups of the Commi ssion on Human Rights to
continue to pay special attention to the plight of human rights defenders.

81. M. SHATTUCK (United States of Anerica) said that the crucial role of
i ndi vi dual s and non-governmental organi zations in the struggle to ensure
respect for human rights could not be overenphasi zed. Those who fought for
freedomof religion, free expression, cultural self-expression, denocracy,
political pluralismand the protection of the environment were the true human
rights defenders. He paid tribute to the nmen and wonen who had | ost their
lives in defence of human rights in 1996 in countries around the gl obe and
went on to cite the achi evenents of the nen and wonen who defended hunan
rights in East Tinor, Indonesia, Tibet, China, Burma and Sierra Leone.
Political |eaders, too, in South Africa and CQuatemal a had taken a courageous
stand for peace, reconciliation and hunan rights.

82. In many countries, journalists risked inprisonnent or even death, as had
been the case in Algeria and in Mexico, while senior staff fromN geria's
pro-denocracy weeklies had been driven underground. Those who took a stand

on hazardous environnental conditions sonetinmes suffered for offending forces
nore powerful than they, as in the recent cases of a retired Navy captain in
Russia, a mssile technician turned journalist in China and an opponent of the
| oggi ng i ndustry on Sarawak.

83. He was struck by the nunber of non-governmental organizations present in
the Comm ssion and the range of viewpoints they represented, not all of which
accorded with the views of the United States. It was the task of NG from
the United States, as human rights defenders, to draw attention to the
shortcom ngs of their Covernment. They played a central role in their
country's denocracy, and their right to speak out against the policies of
their own country as well as other countries nust be defended. Since the

San Franci sco Conference which had given birth to the United Nations system
NG had been at the forefront of the novenment to bring human rights out of
the realmof theory and into the lives of ordinary people. The United States
took a special pride in the close and frequent consultations it held with its
own NG3s on human rights issues.

84. H s Government was concerned about the slow progress made by the Wrking
QG oup on the draft declaration on human rights defenders. The declaration
needed to be adopted i nmedi ately so that the Comm ssion could go on record in
support of the courageous work of those who defended and pronoted hunman rights



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR 62
page 21

around the world. Human rights defenders were an integral and essential part
of the human rights community and had a critical role to play in the
Conmi ssion on Hunman Rights and throughout the world

85. Ms. GALLEGOS (International Service for Human R ghts), speaking al so on
behal f of the International Comm ssion of Jurists, International Federation of
Human R ghts Leagues, International Federation of ACAT (Action of Christians
for the Abolition of Torture), International League for the R ghts and

Li berati on of Peoples, Centre for Justice and International Law, Conm ssion
for the Defense of Human R ghts in Central America (CODEHUCA), Andean

Conmmi ssion of Jurists and World Christian Life Community, said that on

20 March 1997, during a debate in the Human Ri ghts Conmi ssion of the Col onbi an
Senat e, the Commrander of the Arned Forces had stated that the report of the
United States Departnent of State on the situation of human rights in Col onbi a
in 1996 was unreliable because it was based on the reports of the Col onbi an
Commi ssion of Jurists, whose director, M. Qustavo Gl l 6n, had been charged
with a nunber of crimnal offences. The fal se accusations against M. Gallén
were a clear fabrication by mlitary intelligence. An earlier statenent by

t he Commander-in-Chief of the Arny in Col onbia had inplied that the human
rights crisis in Col onbia was due to a network of guerrilla drug traffickers
in Europe. False and irresponsible statements of that type jeopardized the
lives of human rights defenders.

86. M. @Gl l én had been one of the spearheads of the Col onbian NG in their
work to obtain access to international and regi onal human rights nachinery.

H s continuous activity in human rights bodies in the Anericas had proved

i nconveni ent for those accustoned to inpunity and silence on the part of the
international community. Attenpts were currently being nade to put an end to
M. Gllén's activities on behal f of denbcracy, the rule of law and justice
and peace in Col onbia. The organi zati ons whi ch she represented thus
considered it a natter of urgency that the Comm ssion should express its
concern to the Government of Col onmbia for the freedomand safety of

M. Gllén.

The neeting rose at m dni ght




